ANNUAL
REPORT

2023




& Blended Liquor Tank And Filter Press In Distillery Bottling Hall Extension Area

"-J..-"!-

A SR BRI

Mq——mw




.m.-l-l-u--!' i bt

fnnial Repar 2023

|
ﬁ THE BOMBAY PRESIDENCY E

THE UNITED PROVINCES
THE PUNIJAB, Erc

Their History, People, Commerce, and Natural Rescurces

l:.'..i-lll.l;lr
SOMERSET PLAYNE, F.RGS.

assits o J W, BOND
Eniren wv ARNDLD WEIGHT

33-32 LUDCATE HILL, LONDONM, LC

L T L%




7 =

Annual J;-.'.Jt'f.ht AL EU.I-:’J

Murree Brewery Ceanpany Liiled

ofwes, lanary, pradaens, ind wber bailds
ingy, which ferm &y impoilag srwciemn
on Lhe grand trunk reod lesding from
Prohewar direct to Calewres, snd they hars
o Mo ppacy wl slwst jo,000 squars [ovd
i euleat.  The properiy was erecied wi
ol ol mory than Ra. 1,080, Wikin
bt g i = qwr 1 which
Mabwmnncdan eomplopres reiies fad piaper,
Tha hrad ofecw B wnder the sipeor=
wilerpdemd wf Muws Mahamed | Fasba,
and the R have agensis ia nearly svery
port ol India) tha priacips] s lming
Ihellil, wisere 1l mamsgement ly in Lha
bamcly pf Mom Den Mehsoed; (hoss s
Camnpore amd Luchmow wre cond rulled by
Man Faml Ellakd, ond wihers 81 Maltan,
Llalim, and |‘||‘rl:h|.'| [Nond] aew
workrd by virieun ol ageia.
Wrlcanbiodl showw, duah wivh se pha Sran
three of 1k tewsd jusl named sre, o
rrrwigd ot e ferturien, s 1] ding

.THE PUNJAB

Apart Irems his sirrnseus tomesercial
Iefe, ihe sl pariner—3fisn §iekamed
Nwiswin—iakes & bern bstorent in ke
genersl wellorg of leis [ollew Mahame
mwdane, ol bn 1k tean ol Lmritear el
bt i vl rrmcly pupeler smung ofl st ions
ol the romsruniiy, [0y one of ihe desens
wl the Mlabmenmedan reiigon il during
the mrmmih wl Wajaly iy wralthy sdbereny
whawld giv alma o the oo 1o the ooiosi
el 3} prer bevi. wpen ibe wales of Usis
povirnaluny, and bl Motamed 1,
m ool iy wiah Usly mjpunodes, regords
i s & ssrred ebligaton resilog apos
leim 1a winil geery Molmmesdan man snd
wornii b Al o wlom be presends
maney aml cluihing srownling b9 uheir
prveral P e s

Feriber than i, he granm schalor-
thigh 18 meiw wl jeesr parenin with i
shipert wl gmaldiig 1lim 14 prosecie their

b oyemlity e " preeey © oawd " serwmle, <
snd dif frestatsl by peeassrgewal e
weiglt mbm T mim hesvy,” ™ beoavy,”
= mmlemmn,™ sl * lighi = perrrde. Cone
pigrere s wl Vsgsm ar misile up i ] hylha
snd Cownputy lof drupirh b Cabraia,
loslay, wf Kerarhl, where ihep are
vhipprd v the Unipd Stsirs of Aswvien

Plry salivald ;H-H:,'Ill-" sl gling Trues
sl lerwiw hw, wy wril g wibery porrhosrd
- thy markel W Amrituar, arr siered b
pedoams sl bwadaquarirry far arleroinm,
sunarumnal, asl porbiog, wml wlfied h-\.-n._
el I i bulew, they arw
T wabded lesf l1.I|F-'I] La B umsspsgan ruun-
ik wf B Ulebind Staies of Aneden
Elawpshim aml pudiy sre alss wugmiriesl
e e almsgemsned  Feaniri, l'LluI'q:
England bw tlw destimatims lf wosd,

The Grm i repeesrnied 8 Ameres by
Kewrw. [ I, Resaborh amd lirechers,
wlerwe apend ba Awprwr—Ar, Poer A
Srlhwwrdhding —qwiery bmim pnd r_r:l-ﬂn
Bl rontrwts wib heaw, gisd 1hi seacl
guminy ol slinn which change kands ia
this masser W pow sbesl jopooee o
malerr, Al parkages for evrmsenn an
wariges] walk s lettee © R, D7

Mewers. Mehsiisl 1lassgin Allahibsa
pencyn & swlaianiial sem ol swney 0s
vapital lur s rasryimg wn ol ibrir vawl
lswuineys, pnsl all Branris] seiten arg
welrupled i il Nasssng] [Lank ol Jealea,
Lial

Almpa | o bisssl rrd Baonsls are eeplugrd
da Ty s gk wll ha lwvories, byl tlerss are
earlamiar vl @ lorge amd wenpr@ml §lyrical
Al basinicwy apslstarie, aml Fumeipion
Egrits el Aosibesd  sad a  dalieus
Lom o Loy,

=ily |

lma in ruligimens aosd wtleer subijecie, amd

ul gopwmat g ing slvaerrd wiwlows e pee-

orwd v b L g el isbepinaly segroas
-y

THE MURBREE BADWERT COMFANY, LTE

Thaa raempany was estalilidad la e
yror (0 whih sle wligren ol sspglpiog
Lrivishi treme b MNunbers ladon with
gmald luwr sl @ wrvmesalde price, iha s
peried ariily in b aapy bring wery
rusily, smsl limg rwdrecin gees be ihe
rumpany by Covornmenl wvie porasdls
tally rongwvd wp = lypel, whin ey
traepl, aud wpre e bad s b
Lo,

A, third wl il presenl lepildingy—
kmm gs ile Llers Gall [irgwerp—mwrre
then in reldemy, snd temmicd of tew
e ol maaliings (14§ q-qﬂ;ul,' it
lormsg, Toruntbeg taus, Oiflory, alfices,
amsl ihe sapwiaml bresor's psrior, e
o8 braly bnovyasel feriher prrommsd stim
wad worerwd by ihe eretiles of wiler
wirarvares bigher wp vhe wlde of the kil
wpan which ibs premims sre eretied,
The site by alan sig wsilry dintunl sleag
the waln rusal (rem Merree. Fiallp, o
prw arl ol mbiengy waa belly la 1076
tha ropaciiy bosng (28 guaniees &l &
tme. The boriey msbisl hcrs i wasally
lptaliorsl irmn the MorileWest Proatler
Prwvwnr, snd wlee l-.rll.hl.lh]l | rumm il
Borwwrs vl flL.

T = eppar m=hings = consist o Uhre
Bosrs. La ihy tep of i i iy sirep-
g tank, neml bn tbe (ws wpper Werep
ithere s wallicirul s @ % pros
aos gusrters ol ludlep,  Oa the Elurll
Buui la ibe Lils o= wlhich the malied .
gram fn dricd ss] rwred, s wrll as o8’

b33 .-

remin far  soreening  and  wiering  he
Bmishid mali, Erepn bead one dewn 19
b lmp-winry and mill-room, whirs Uers
in & weip fae grindmg wmaching, by
Memm, Worommm & Co, amd dow u
humd @s i Brescbeiee. wih e o
Fowisd joigmabirr wash lend aid Tow bl
g cuppers. By ha slde ol the cappen
iiw wa bepilers by Ba'seork asd Wilces,
and & ewmpiund engine by Mesre Mare
shail & Sean & CTo, Lid. in sddiilen ta
o dymmne, which sapplion ke bresery
amd phiinge wiih vl itir ligha

& kg Big b ol sima sirps ghioes oo
b WEPRAS wielE P §d e i-fl'ri‘"-
ating  snd  lereeming  chambsrs, 1’
lavior haviag win wais whh 0 capacity of
ton hogubends rach, A3 the foot of the
sligs b & Large pard, wosl o rliber asde
aby begr ovbars wibh o 6l e begee
el ropuin Mg, glavs  recmelled  wiey]
Bamke wd 0 fu g eleaade o e |
maat ) Wik rwasle sl vadpisg shos,
il storsge bwing sbusi Jeea bage-
bradn, Ta the bedt ol the pard, sadd alve
thee rellars, are the old mabiagy end Gilea,
amal in b Ledi af ihese W obe coupemge,
m whirh all ihe resky wee  eepaieed,
cloaprd, gud Enslly smeribed by sieam
T iber Figha wl vl yord, sl slaery ihe
orilaf, ate spasiuds wilar wupird by
s mansger snad smcreiary amd b besd
wlliry mall.

In they (romi of, swd feciag the maks
buidding, art a printieg ofew, & bailiag
sind ¥ pasigurising ™ fucin, sl o gebesa,
wmbrrpralh wivigh by sostber oollar, and
lswnr dwwn the hallalde, smd below the
maln road, are esigmiey guariees bar ihe
Jodian wial,

On iha hillside abeve the main budds
gt arg mparmie guaniens lor ihe head
wllicg tlerke, & large barkey siafe, & very
e iwmsabryrsl inses Tor (he mansgre
ol wr rrtary, wnsd e leere laef Lt sisig s

dng , wheisel iy el Selabinl
wetrEiaty. :
The waier wupply, obianed [rem

maigral aprings nearet the semmis of 1ks
Bill, Funn inte masordy Feservwirn, [rem
which i s laid s du every part of the
wahbngs sl bresery,  The ssler b
e rplueaaily pare, aed sy suitslds
fur berwmbig iba st sppaling o shes gind
LTS B

A Lng metalled rosd lesds wp Drom Vi
ik ibgrgsghlire 1 the wpper malvmgs
@l thg e el ihe bulsdlags, bn which all
row aigrisle are wisted, Gesd thus il
jromrnses od weliimg sl laes bng s e
e n.p-u-qu'-u-n-l P Ry i il
the Baiskad bwar b receiend saie ceflar

L

S i :



Marrve Brewery %m&ﬁ&i

THE Erﬂl‘.}ﬂrz\? PRESIDENCY, UHIT\'}D PROVINCES, PE;J_]AB, ETC.

o e bass, un be miered thers wmid
mglarwd

Tl company msmaacisre and wapply
v Eriish wroapy anad iha prosral pallis -
= Faw lelis Palé Ade™ ™ Light Cliaie
pagns Ale™ wimd XXX Kipal T
bitlen, sad < drsughl berrn ™ in gasks
aml jary Baldimg from ene galien sp ia
Eiypduur gallon,

Far thi cemeenmnce o canteess, snld
for quik conssmpilon, 1 cumpany bare
fur many yrary posd Biaved et of ihele
drasght slot, (b enabling cusigery o
v (b denbpali of caaks and fere
13 uhe lan drep, bl ewing to the dafficuliy
ol gmsining materisle for this preceis
dasing s Latg war vhay pramboe ks st
boen regularly lallowed, Ab thet tims
whin Cervimmenl cenlfacld Crised 1l
iumpany [ound B secemary ie appeis
divtribsing spmin, sod Motire, [amsijes
& Sowmi, Lid, wha werr, selonied lor the
punirkan, mow well ibein bevry ane sewt
& procvicslly eeerp bwwn ladween Pl
pwpr gnad Karachl

Norsrslly 1he reaspany were campeiind
i Bghi ageimsl wrvere rempeies, bl
whry have almays kold il largest thaie
ol ket thandy b Warthori Daadla, messnl-
wtanslong tha Tari Wlal pvrryibing [with
e rerepiion ol hafley el Il'llnul:l wan i
ab bk, CRsbn, dnii below ry, Redd plant, amd
a Thegaped aeed e aniicles led e
variwul deparimenia, hat 18 i h-._pill:n!
The rallwny Erelghi, ton,
ou sl penls @ as bupsnom Gem en
u ling ua far fren & scapert, amd b sbdi=
tien share i oodst ool ool transpert sleng
30 mbey o & il read letwrgn ila
tslleny irrmsnsn kad ke lewwery.

Tha rempiny purschass ihe b leaps
pra wralide, wdbad dn u.l'u.l.bll wr Cale
Ternis.,

Tht inpasl o the menpasy =un sriglh
mally fined =i Ea. 15,00, 008, bui derisg
ik ninstigs ol laak cemtary B wan
wrraied 1@ R ol e oo,

-3

ELAWALPFIND] BEEWERY

i pragreen made by e
y Compasy. Lid, afur
poar i Bla, wnd tle
wmad ok abwly Damisus
greally wrrrmsing
Ird ibw Slbcriars
a1 Kl jends
b Beuildimgn,

from Esiepe,

ke ol Mgribera |
18 wranl & berassh
bt Usiry puarn laker,
wlhich srw b e form ol &
are reclosed by a3 high wall “wynd ceme
priee ihy mill-tuun ond bees-bose, wilh
rualens and peivigersien en the op feed,

sll of which arg on tha nevbera slde |

nting foums, whh aln wem esch,
n rapachy ol 109 bopulands, are
wa il paslerm sl p mesd iler
wiliang, lsailbng, * paskewrliing,”
thing resss sre wn e eyl
ww e shsle alruriars e buge

Lona fopuesidy. Al one end
Bamr ja b biln frem which
male b tramalersed by meass
ie the tup Bper, whers ther
Creeaing reams, amd @

ol Vi Mwrron Berwsry Cumpany, L,
bbrwetirs ot slimeied s hera
mear Mlarore, dpartid, ad Bawals
piealbiwad s, bob melllofosy ba wha
7 b m laigrd  sapplp  owd
Fp"” ageris, iledd el e
i prrisial diwsassd ber pary wedi
which rewildd la plared ss Ll
1 & sy Egure than ihe v
#f ke mepurted srica.  They

g al, bud pummunkeaimg wiil,

wade ul saie, are weed for
barley | ned che Gos

wha wamiorn ke of e
1 oemperage  Esd

theg whels

romgiine  bas
etrwa iy il 1% P
whe pegwrpmemi y wl
iha b Bataa ol

sre @ palaial rescdoncs
Iaf Ll wae o the manager a

masaging lrewgr, kin s
tiller, amsd tbw EwgEer

ol Mlarch
The «umpany kare guragy acs
plun lar ihalr sssir lorray, =
bt winpit. Bawad plasdl and Ghars
prianipsl bresery monr Mlaffet,
/. "
THE RAWALFINEG] DISTILLERT
Aldul ey yeary age s
AL

il

e prems wl iha bevwory al Biwal-
el whi fnprisacs & forsoleg-
oo, sl base, lssflors, spirin steev,
e i, e horeg ama] mibiwr rimeses,
the wibady LE lsrmimg & spaaig wih &
wpstaan pard Yo ibe restre. The jloss

-sail li, runsEmawaid s dis

wl ibe Dlair miidl Ml Yoan
wml Calfey 1y snad ibw aliviillory i
capalle ol vl Ljaees L.

lrmm sha rempany’s
Tha dinsilllary & wei
pear, ifpleymes lcing (il fed slesd
filiy men.

-r




Aanual M‘Pﬁh’.’- 2“2&

Marree Frewery Cenmpany Limiled

CONTENTS

Yizgien & Migiion Statement

Corperate Informaticn

Profiles of t2e Board of Direclens

Principal DMicess

Notice of Anneal General Mesting

Crairman’y Review

Directers’ Rport

Zla Years of 8 Glance

Graghical Presentation

Statement ol Financial Penition Vertical Rsslyiis
Statement of Prelit and Lozy Herirontal and Yertical Anatyiis

Pattern of Sharghaldng
Cade of Canduct

Review Repori oo Statement of Complance with Livted Companisy
{Code e Corpornle Governance) Regulations, 2018

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companing
{Code of Corparale Governance) Regulafions, 2019

Roditery Repert 19 the Membery
Statement of Fisancial Position
Staiement ol Prof or Lozt

$atement of Comprobeasiey Income
Statement of Changes In Equity
Statement of Canh Flowsy

Noten ta t2e Fisancial Statements
Directory’ Report to 15e Membery In Urdy
Notice of Anrgal Genaral Meeting In Urdu
Chairman’s Review in Urds

Form of Prary in English

Farm of Prary ia Undu

Diiderd Mandyte Form

Page

1

2.3
49
10
1113
14
15-23
24
25

Fi

27
28-31
32-38
19

40-42

4347
a8

49

a0
31-52
53
54105
106-113

114116

n7
118-119
120121

122




,r'fnnu:i'f E-!?.f'd Wl 2”—? 3

VISION STATEMENT

Our office 1s in the market

MISSION STATEMENT

We the people of Murree Brewery Co. Ltd. make our personal commitment to
first understand our customers’ requirement then to meet and exceed their
expectations, by performing the correct tasks on time and every time through:

C ontinuous improvement
A lignment of our missions and goals
R esponsibility and respect of our jobs and each other

E ducate one another



Annual Repar& 2023

Murree Brewery Company Lindled

ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF MRECTORS
Chairman-Non Executive Director
CEQDirector-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Mon-Evecutive Derector
Independent Durector

Independent Director

Independent Director

FRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Company Secrefary

Chuef Financial Officer

Head of Internal Audst

General Manager (Brewery Division)
Business Manager (Muorree Glass)
Flant Manager ([ WV W)
General Manager (Tops)

Factory Manager (Murree Sparkletts)
Manager Compliance & Reporting

ALUDIT & RISK
MAN MEN MM

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION
ANDNOMINATION COMMITTEE

AUDITORS

h's KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Acoountants.

6" Floos, State Life Bldg.
Iinnah Avenoe, Islamabad.

Ch. Mueen Afzal

Mr. Isphamyar M. Bhandara
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shiran
M. Geonki M. Bhasdara
Prof. Khalid Ariz Mirza
Mr, Shahbar Haider Agha
Mr Pervair Akhtar

Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon

M. Muhammad Khurshid

Mr. ZFaka Ullah Malik

Mr. Fakher-g-Makmood

hr Arshad Faheer

M Faka wd Din

Mr. Talat Yagoob Awan

Mr. Fayyar Ahmad

hr. Muhammad Soban ur Raufl

Mr. Shahbar Hasder Agha  (Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afral (Member)
Prof Khalid Aziz Mirza (Member)

Prof. Khalid Azir Mirza {Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afal (Member)
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazn (Member)
Mr. lsphanyar M. Bhandara (Member)
Mr, Pervaiz Akhtar [Member)

Askar Commescial Bank Ltd, Islamabad

Standard Chartered Hank, Islamabad

Nationa] Bank of Pakistan, Rawalpindi / Hattar

Bank Alfalah Ltd, Rawalpindi

The Bank of Khyber, Hattar

Allsed Bank Lid, Rwp/Lhe 'Gujranw F.Ahad Multan
Sahiwal MurreeSargodha

United Bank Limited, Islamabad

Bank Al-Habb Limited, Lahore
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ESTABLISHED 1860

REGISTERED OFFICE

Murree Brewery Company Limited
J-National Park Road, Rawalpindi

Tel: 051-556T04147, Fax: 051-5584420

E-mail _murmee breweny i murreebtewery.com

murbrieyber net pk

Wichsite, www murrechrewery com

FACTORIES

A

J-National Park Road, Rawalpindi

Tel: 051-5567041-47, Fax: 051-5584420

Tops Food & Beverages
J-National Park Road, Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-336T04147, Fax: US1-556546)

Plot No. 14/1, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hattar, District Hanpur (K.PK)
Tel: 0995617013, 617493, 617494

A 5
Plot No, 102, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hatar, Dustrict Hanpur (K.P.K)

12173, Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore

Murree Glass

Plot o, 24, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K)

Tel: 995617231, (995617188

DISTRIBUTION QFFICES

Tops Food & Beverages

12143, Industnal Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore. (Tel: 042-5117501)

Az Chowk Pindi Bypass,
Galla Sonica Industry, G.T.Road,
Cupranwala [ Tel: 055-3391571)

Mansoora Abad

Near Sant Sing Railway Gate
Jumra Road, Faisalabad

Tel: (O41-8522182 & 24204580)

[01B, MNear Winter Time,
Small Industries Estate, Sahiwal
Mobile: 03315-5611125

Ratts Gals, Ayubia Road, Murree
Moty DI35-5111047

(vi)

(i)

fu}

‘ .

Flot Ko, 28-B Small

Industrial Estate Opp.

Siddque Kantawala Main

Lahore Road, Sargodha

Mob: 033555611103

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House 99-B, Block "B SMUHS, Main

Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi-74400,

Tel: +(92-21)111-111-500

Fax: +(92-21)034326053, Email-infoiicdesrslcom
‘_r

Hamid Law Associates,

S04 10, Alfalah Building,

shahrah-g-Chuaid-e-Azam

Lahore, Tel: 042-630180]

Me Umer Abdullah { Advocate)

Chaudhary Law Associates

Advocate High Court

Flats No. 5 & 6, I" Floor, MICCOP Center,
|. Mozang Road, Lahore.

Cell # 0300-8430377, 0345-8412222

{iii) Mr. Mubammad llyas Sheikh

(1}

(i}

i1ii)

House Mo, 37, Street Moo 02, Mohalla
Phase 5, Bahna Town, lslamabad.

TAX ADVISORS

Mascem Zafar Associales
10-Commercial Building,
Shahrab-g-uaid-g-Aram, Lakore.
Tel: (42-37314315-16

Sheikh Law Associates

G 313316, Imran Mansion,

Gordon College Road, Rawalpindi,

Ph: 051-3770500 Website: www.sla net pk

AUs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

6™ Floor, State Life Bldg,
Jinnah Avenue, lslamabad.

CORFORATE ADVISOR

RS Corporate Advisory

First Floor, Plot Ne. 62, Central Commercial
Area (CCA), Block-T, Phase -2, Defence
Housing Authority , Lahore Cantt-Pakistan,
Tel: +92 42357 47904

Website: www recorporate.com
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Ch. Mueen Afzal
Chairman =Non Executive Director

Ch. Mueen Afzal after getting his MA Degree from Oxford University joined the Civil Service of
Pakistan in 1964, finally retiring from Government Service in 2002. While in service, he held several
important positions which included Finance Secretary in Balochistan (1981-84), Finance Secretary n
the Punjab (1984-86), Economic Minister in the Pakistan Embassy in Washington, D. C, USA (1987-
90), Later, he was Health Secretary, Government of Pakistan (1995.96), Finance Sccretary in
Islamabad (1996-1998) and Secretary General, Finance & Economic affairs from 1999-2001.

He was awarded Hilal-e-Imtiaz for distinguished public service in 2003 by the Government of
Pakistan.

After his retirement from the civil service, he held a number of appointments in the corporate sector.
At present, he is Chairman of the Board of Murree Brewery Company Ltd, and member of Audit and
Risk Management Committee as well as HR & Remuneration and Nomination Commuttee. He was
Chairman of the Board of Pakistan Tobacco Company as well as the Chairman of Akzo Nobel
Pakistan.

He is a founder director of the Pakistan Centre of Philanthropy and on the Board of Beaconhouse
National University, Currently, he is the Chairman of the Langlands Endowment Trust, which raises
charitable funds for the Langlands school & college, located in Chitral.
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Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
CEO/Director - Executive Director

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara started his family business, Murree Brewery Co, Ltd. Rawalpindi, one of
the oldest public limited companies of the sub-continent in 1997,

Joined Board of Directors of the company in 1998, Before this he has significant exposure to fields
eperation including production, project development, development planning, conceptual engineering
and operation supports in the brewery and its other divisions.

In June, 2005 became Executive Director till 2008, In June, 2008 was appointed as Chief Exceutive
Officer of the Murree Brewery Group of Companies on the demise of his father.

The Company has also other divisions manufacturing food products, fruit juices, mineral water, non-
alcoholic products and glass containers. The traditional activitics of the Company are brewing and
distilling of fine liquors and beers. With the passage of time the company has increased the product
lines and capacity as well.

* Holds a Master Degree in Business & Administration,

* Ex-Member of the National Assembly of Pakistan on scat reserved for Minorities (2013«
2018).
Currently President of Rawalpindi ParsiAnjuman.

* Representing and helping following Minority communitics of Pakistan Parsi, Sikhs, Baha'is,
Buddhists, Kalash and doing other social and welfare activities.

=  Attended vanous LUMS workshops on business.
Completed Directors” Training Program from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
MNon-Executive Director

Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi graduated in Economics from USA and completed his OPM from
Harvard Business School. He has over 30 years of rich experience to his credit. He was the Chiefl
Executive of Atlas Honda Limited for over ten years before becoming President of the Atlas Group
in July 2000,

He has also been associated with the following institutions:

Member Board of Directors, Lahore Stock Exchange

Member Board of Governors, LUMS, Lahore

Member Board of Governors, Aitchison College, Lahore

Member Board of Directors, Engincering Development Board
Member Syndicate, University of Engineening & Technology, Lahore

Mr. Shirazi has been the Honorary Consul General of Japan, Lahore since 2002,
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Mprs. Goshi M. Bhandara

Non-Executive Director

Due to untimely death of Mr. M. P. Bhandara in June, 2008, Mrs. Goshi M Bhandara was invited

to joun MBC Board against casual vacancy. Since then she is on the Board, She 15 also member
of Audit and Risk Management Commitice.

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Independent Director
He got his bachelor’s degree in finance from Indiana University, USA and an executive MBA degree
from NCB&E, Lahore. He has 24 years' experience of Insurance Industry in Pakistan. Currently he is
wirking as CEDQ with Hellenie Sun Insurance Brokers (Pvi.) Lid He served as director on the board
of Capital Investment Bank Ltd. in 2015-16. He also served as director on the Board of Samba Bank
Lid. since 2013-16. He is an Honorary Consul General of Greece in Lahore since 2007,
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Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza

Independent Director

Mr. Mirza is a Masters of Commerce (M.Com) from University of Punjab, Lakore, and has also been
awarded an honorary doctorate degree by the Institute of Business Management, Karachi. He has
about 53 years of work experience.

Mr. Mirza served for about seven years in various positions in Investment Corporation of Pakistan
(ICP), and then for over 6 years in the Credit & Finance Corporation, a merchant bank in London.
Subsequently, for about two decades, he remained on the professional investment staff of the
Iaternational Finance Corporation (IFC) (Member, World Bank Group), Besides this, he has also
served as the founding Chairman of Secuntics & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (three years);
Sector Manager for Financial Sector Development, East Asia & Pacific Region, The World Bank,
Washington DC, USA (about four years), Chairman and Chiel Executive, Monopoly Coatrol
Authority (one year); founding Chairman and Chiefl Executive Competition Commission of Pakistan
(three years); and Member, Competition Appellate Trnibunal (about eight months). Mr. Mirza joined
the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) in 2010 and is at present Professor of
Practice. Mr. Mirza is also an Independent Director and Chairman of the Board of both Orix Leasing
Pakistan Limited as well as the Board of AwwalModaraba, and an Independent Director on the
Boards of Silkbank and Murree Brewery Company Limited. Recently, he was appointed Chairman,
Securitics and Exchange Policy Board.

Significant among his regular consultancy assignments are Finance Consultant, WAPDA and
Evaluator, Investment Evaluation Unit, The World Bank Group.
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Mr, Pervaiz Akhtar
Independent Director

Mr. Akhtar graduated in 1976 from University of Punjab with majors in Economics. He later
attended an MBA program at School of Business and Commerce Islamabad and secured distinction
in Business Policy & Strategy and Human Resource Management. He completed his professional
traming with Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler (KPMG) and passed Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (Inter) examination in 1981, In 1989 Mr. Akhtar was awarded a USAID
scholarship and ke completed Petroleum Management Program at Arthur D. Little Inc Boston,
US.A,

Mr. Akhtar is responsible for METRO's Corporate Affairs since 2007 including Public Palicy, ESG
and Regulatory Affairs. Being pant of the senior management team, he has contributed towards
successfully establishing the METRO Pakistan's business in Pakistan. Prior 1o joining METRO, he
served as General Manager Corporate AfTairs for a Dutch Multinational Company (SHV Energy) for
over Y years. Mr. Akhtar has a versatile experience of more than 40 years of working with local and
multinational companies in Pakistan. During this period, he served in senior management positions in
the ficld of Finance, Human Resources, Procurement and Corporate Affairs. Mr. Akhtar is a Centified
Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He is also the current President of
German-Pakistan Chamber of Pakistan, He has been an independent Director on the Board of
Directors of LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited for three terms spanning over 9 vears and has served
as Chairman of the Audit Commiftee and Chairman of HR & Remuneration Comminee.

Oatside interests:

e Director Corporate Affairs METRO Pakistan (Pvt) Lid

*  Director Star Farm Pakistan (Pvt) Limited (METRO Group Company)

o  Dhrector CABI-SFPK Joint Venture

e Director CORE

» President German-Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry & Member Exccutive
Commiles
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Ch. Waqar A. Kahloon
Company Secretary

Zaka Ullah Malik Muhammad Khurshid
Head of Ieternal Audit Chael Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF 156/ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 156" Anmual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) will be held at its
Registered Office, 3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi on Friday, October 20, 2023, at .30 am. 10 transact the
following business:

DHRMSARY BUSINESS
1. To peverve, consider and adopt the Anpual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the
Directors” and Auditor’s Repoerts for the year ended June 30, 2023, and Chairman’s Review Report.

I, Toapprove the payment of final cash dividend of 30% 1.e. Ba. 5= per share of B |0V gach, as recommended
by the Board of Directors. This is in addition 1o the interim dividend of 50% iLe. Ra. 5/« per share already
declared and paid to the sharcholders, thus, making a total cash dividend of 100% ie. Rs. 105 per share for
the year ended June 30, 2023

Y. To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby notified that the
Audit & Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors have recommended the appointment of
retinng Auditors, M's KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants, a8 suditors of the Company for the
vear griding June 30, 2024

BY ORDEKR OF THE BOARD

Al

_'_._,.r"'-
Rawalpind Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon
September 26, 2023 Company Secretary
SUOTES:

AYAILABILITY OF AUDMITED FISANCIAL STATEMESNTS ON COMPANY'S WERBSITE:

Ihe audited financial statemnents of the Company for the year ended Junc 30, 2023 along with Directors” &
Auditor's Report, Chairman’s Review Report, Motice of AGM and other related materals have been made
avalable oa the Company’s website. which can be downloaded' viewed from the following QR code and weblink:

OFeso]

https://murrechrewery.com/financials/[=¥

CLOSURE OF SHAKRE THANSFER UMIRS:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for
regustration from Octeber 14, 2023, to October 20, 2023, (both days inclusive), Transfers received in order ot
“COC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B°, SM.C.HS., Main Shakrab-e-Faisal,
Karachi™ at the close of business {§ p.m) on October 13, 2023, will be treated in time for the purpose of
entitlement of cash dividend and to attend, speak and vote at the AGM.

RIGHT TO APPOINT PROXY:

A member i enlitled to appoint a proay in hivher place to attiend and voie instead of himber. The instrument
appointing a proxy, duly stamped and signed, snd the power of attormey or other authority (if any} under which it
it uigned of 8 notanally certified copy of the power of attorney or authority must be deposited at the Registered
Oilice of the Company, }-Mational Park Road, Rewalpindi mot Later than 48 hours {excluding non-working days)
before the tme of the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

L In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and'or the persons whose securities are in
proup account snd thewr registrabion detaili are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing their onginal Computerired National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the
time of aftending the mecting 11
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ii. Incase of corporate entities, the Board of Directors” resolution/power of aftorney with specimen signature of
the nominees shall be produced [unless it has been provided earlier) af the bme of the meeting.

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

L A member may appoint any member of the Company (u's 137(1 Kd} of the Companies Act, 2017} a3 a proxy
to aftend and vote on his / her behalf, Proxies in onder 1o be effective must be recerved ol the Regustered
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

il. Incase of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and’or the persons whose securities ang in
Eroup sccount and their registration details ang uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
per the above requirements.

fii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentoned on the form

v, Anested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proay shall be furnished with the
prony form.

v, The proxses shall produce their original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting

vL In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directons’ resolution’power of attorney with specimen signature of
the person nominated 10 represent and vote oa behalf of the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unkess it has
been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company,

DEDUCTION OF RATES OF INCOME TAX FOR ACTIVE TAX PAYER AND NON-ACTIVE TAX
PAYER:

Under the provisions of Section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 rates of withholding income tax on dividend
will be as followy

1 Raie of tax deduction for sharcholders appearing in the Active Tax Payers list 13%
i Rate of tax deduction for sharcholders not appearing i the Active Tax Payers list | 30%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either active or non-active tax payer and tax
will be deducted on the hasis of sharcholding of each joint holder as may be potified by the sharcholder, in
writing as follows, 1o our Share Registrar, otherwise, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number
of shares,

Principal Sharcholder Jornt Sharebolder
Folio / CDS Toal | Names& | Shercholding Nacne & Smﬂ”lﬂ*
Account Mo Shares | CNIC No. iHDF nll'ﬁl ) CHIC Mo, :Hln. ﬂjf Shares)

The CHIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the fax states as per the Active
Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time o time,

EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX / ZAKAT:

Members secking cxemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate, are
requested to submit & valid tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be.
Members desiring non-decuction of zakst are also requestod to submit & valid declaration for non-deduction of

rakal

12
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FARTICIFATION IXN THE AGM THROUGH VIDEO-LINK:

The Company has arranged the facility for attending the meeting video link. To attend the meeting through video
link, the members and their proxies are requested 1o register themselves by providing the following information
along with valid copy of CKIC / passport with the subject “Registration for Murree Brewery Company
Limited AGM™ through email at general meetingséimurrechbrewery.com on or before October 17, 2023:

Name of member CNIC N, CDNC Account Cell Number | Email Address
No. Folio No.

The members who are registered afier the necessary verification shall be provided a video link by the
Company on the same email address that are provided 1o the Company. The Login facility will remain open
from start of the meeting till its proceedings are concluded.

The sharcholders who wish to send their commenty’ suggestions on the agends of the AGM can email the
Company at general meetingsi@murrecbrewery.com or WhatsApp at 0331-5850900. The Company shall
ensure that comments' suggestions of the sharcholders will be read out at the meeting and the responses will
be made part of the minutes of the mecting.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS:
Members are requested to promptly notify any change of address to the Company’s Share Registrar “CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-8, Block *B°, SM.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi™,

PAYMENT OF CASH IMVIDESD THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE:

Section 242 of the Act requires that the listed companies shall pay cash dividend only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the sharcholders. SECT vide its notification 5. R 0.1145 (1y2017 has
also wsued the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 whereby every sharcholder shall be
responsible 1o provide valid information pertaining to its designated bank account to dishurse any dividend
payable in cash only through clectronc mode derectly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders,

In this regard, the Company has already communicated through its letters addressed to the sharcholders
individually aloag with newspapers publications requesting to provide the International Bank Accounts Nurnber
("IBANT) designated by the shareholders 10 receive the cash dividends electronically, Hence, shareholders are
requested to fill the required fields of the Company’s letter available oa website of the Company:
www, murreebrewery.com and send the same 1o the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, In case
of shares held as book-entry securitics, the said information would be required o be provaded to Central
Depository System (“CDS7), through CDS Participants.

LNCLAIMED IIVIDESD AND SHARE CERTIFICATES:

The Company has eploaded an updated list of sharcholders on its website (https2/'www murrechrewery.com)
whose dividends or share certificates are available with the Company which have remained unclaimed or unpaid
for a period of three years from the date these have become due and payable.

Therefore, shareholders, who have not collected their dividend or shares certificates so far, are requested to
contact Company's Share Registrar “CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B,
SALCHS, Main Shahrah-g-Famal, Karach 1o claim dividend or share certificates.

Satn bm e ol ns g wda e bet=ers Eagisi snd Lrda ol Doghoh Aol shossl be rovags il si msivnl
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

I am pleased to present the review for the year ended June 30, 2023, highlighting the
Company’s performance and the role of the Board of Directors in guiding the management to
carry out its responsibility for the benefit of all its sharcholders.

The Board recognizes that well-defined governance practices are cntical in strengthening
corporate responsibility and is dedicated to achicving excellence in corporate governance
practices to conserve and sustain stakcholders’ wvalue. All Directors, including the
Independent Directors, actively contributed to the Board's decision-making processes.

The Board carried out its annual self-cvaluation in line with best practices of corporate
governance and found its performance to be satisfactory. The focus remained on business
opportunities, nsk management and providing oversight to the management. The Board's
performance 1s reflected in the Annual Report for the financial year ended June 30, 2023,

The Board has outsourced the Companys internal audit function to M/s BDO Ebmahim & Co,,
Chartered Accountants. Internal audit reports are presented to the Board’s Audit & Risk
Management Committee on a quarterly basis,and the Internal Control Processes as well as
potential risks to the Company are regularly reviewed.

The Board meets [requently to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The Board has
diligently performed its duties and responsibilities and has efTectively guided the Company in
all its strategic affairs. The Board was essential in reviewing the management performance
and focusing on significant risk areas. All the present directors are either duly certified or
exempted. The Company is fully compliant with the training requirements of management
and staff, as prescribed by the Regulator.

On behalf of the Board, 1 wish to acknowledge all our employee's contributions to the
Company's success. | also wish to thank our sharcholders, customers, suppliers, bankers,
business partners, and other stakeholders for thewr confidence and support. The Board looks
forward to next year with greater confidence in meeting the challenges ahead.

4
AA afl
Ch. Mueen Afzal
Chairman

Rawalpindi
September 15, 2023

14
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DIRECTORS® REPORT
For the vear ended June 30, 2023

The Board of Directors takes pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the performanceand
progress of Murree Brewery Company Limited (“the Company™) together with the Annual
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023,

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE COMPANY
The Company has completed 163 years of continuous operations and is one of the oldest
companies quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange,

The Company continues with its policies to add value to sharcholders, to invest in its employees
and processes and to improve quality of its products,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

i Overall Financial Overview & Highlights
Rs. in million

Sales revenue (Net) Increased by 22% from 15234 o 18,591
Gross Profit Decreased by 1 % from  3.540 to 3,505
Profit before Taxation Decreasedby 1% from 2,193 w 2,125
Profit after Taxation Decreased by 1.6% from 1294 o 1,274
Eamings per share Decreased by 1.6% from Rsd6.T8 to Rs 4604

The profit after tax of the Company slightly decreased under challenging operating
conditions which is a testimony to the dedication and commitment of the management.

il.  Divislenal Operating Results
The results of our divisions were:

a.  Liguor Division

2023 e | 2022 %
Hs. in million | Rs.in million
Sales exclusive ol applicable taxes 14,684 11,639
| Cost of sales (12.457) (84.5) (9,171) (T4.8)
| Gross profit | 2,226 152 2 468 21.2
| Operating profit | 1,241 8.5 1.630 | 14.0

15
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b, Glass Division
2023 | e 2022 e
Rs. ln millon | Rs. In million
| Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 2,284 1,963
| Cost of sales i(1,479) (64.8) i1,450) {(73.8)
Gross profit 805 15.2 514 26.2
Operating profit 754 33 427 21.7
Glass Containers sales 26,650 | Metric Tons 31,077 | MetnicTons
¢.  Tops Division
2023 e 2022 e
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 4,460 4,150
Cost of sales (3.988) (59.4) (3,593) (56.6)
Gross profit 472 10.6 557 13.4
Operating (Loss) (250) i6.5) (63) | (1.5}
IMPORTANT ISSUES:

i. Tax on water consumption for commercial use:

il

The Supreme Court of Pakistan announced taxation of the beverage industry (@ Re. | per
liter, which was later on reduced by Re. 0.25 per liter as per provincial legislation relating to
the Punjab and KPK. A review petition filed by the beverage industry continues to be
subjudice before the honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, Tops & Murmree Sparkletts
(Hatter) in line with the industry practice, have so far paid Rs. 3.5 million @ Re. 0.25 per
liter to the KPK Government.

Super Tax:

For FY 2022-23, super tax amount was Rs. 247 million.

For FY 2021-22, the Company filed a writ petition against the Super Tax amounting toRs.
2274 million. The Islamabad High Court decided the case in favour of MBCL. The FBR
filed an intra-court appeal in Islamabad High Court against the decision. As per Supreme
Court direction, the Murree Brewery paid 50% of super tax liability amounting to Rs. 113.7
million to FBR.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 5§ per
share for the year ended June 30, 2023, bringing the full year payout to Rs. 10 per share (100%%-
previous year 350%). This shall be subject to the approval of Sharcholders at their meeting
scheduled on October 20, 2023,

16
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RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company's main risks in the short term are the payment/demand of Late Payment Surcharge
{LPS) for rate differential of Sui Gas bills amounting to Rs. 130 million. The matter of LPS on
tariff was pending adjudication with OGRA. The Company has paid Rs. 29.4 million as LPS out
of Rs. 130 million demanded by SNGPL. OGRA disposed ofT the case on 18 November 2022,
and directed the petitioners to pay the principal amount of tanfT differential for continuation of
gas supply on regular basis tll the final disposal of the appeals related to Late Payment
Surcharge on tariff differential by the Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Company has paid
principal amount in full as per decision of OGRA, while Late Payment Surcharge has not been
paid as related appeals in Supreme Court of Pakistan are pending adjudication. This issue
concerns the entire industry which uses Sui Gas.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The total number of Company’s sharcholders as at June 30, 2023, was 1268 against 1,226 on
Jung 30, 2022, The pattern of sharcholding as on June 30, 2023, and its disclosure is annexed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Eamings per share for the year ended June 30, 2023, is Rs. 46.04 as against Rs. 46.78 of preceding
year.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

The internal audit function has been outsourced to M's BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered
Accountants, a renowned firm and Head of Internal Audit has been appointed to coordinate with
them, He reports to the Audit & Risk Management Committee.

COMPANY'S RISK FRAMEWORK AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company envisions that risk management is a core component of the management of the
Company and, therefore, has developed a risk management program which comprises of a series
of processes, structures and guidelines that assist the Company to identify, assess, monitor and
manage its risks,

Further, the Company has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of management to
oversee and manage the risk management program in light of day-to-day needs of the Company.

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Commuttee in order to promote effective risk
management and internal control systems and processes. The Committee provides regular reports
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management program in identifying and addressing
material business risks.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Company conforms to the regulatory requirements on the composition and qualification of
the Board of Directors. As of June 30, 2023, the total number of directors was eight (08).
Category wise composition of the Board was:

a, Male - Six

b. Fermnale ; Two

17
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Names

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr, Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

Category
a) Independent Directors

Ch. Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

by Non-Executive Directors

£} Executive Director

Mrs. Gosha M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

d} Female Directors

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

i Audit & Risk Management Committee:
The Audit & Risk Management Commitiee performed its functions under the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations™) and
comprises of three independent directors and two non-executive directors as under:
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - {Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afzal - {Member)
Prof, Khalid Aziz Mirza . {Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - {Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - (Member)
The Chairman of Audit & Risk Management Committee was an independent Director.
il. MR & Remuneration and Nomination Committce:

The HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee was constituted under the Regulations,
and comprised of two independent directors, an executive director and two non-executive
directors. The details of which are mentioned below:

Prof, Khalid Az:iz Mirza - {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - (Member)
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazn - (Member)
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara - (Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - iMember)

The Chairman of HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee was also an independent
Director,

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors state that!

18
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-

a. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, prepared by the management
of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the result of operations, cash Mlows and
changes in equity.

b. Proper beoks of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

€. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented

f. There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem.

g- There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, levies and charges outstanding as on
June 30, 2023, except as disclosed in the financial statements.

h. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as
detailed in the listing regulations.

i. Key operating and financial data of the last six years in summarized form are annexed.

J- The value of the Provident Fund and Pension Fund (un-audited) investment at June 30,
2023, was Rs ITE.97 million (Audited 2022:Rs. 159.24 million) and Rs.87.52 million
(Audited 2022:Rs. 78.94 million) respectively,

k. During the year 2022-23, five (05) Board mectings, four ((4) Audit & Risk Management
Committee meetings and three (03) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Commities
mectings were held
Attendance of members of the Board and its Committees are as under:

AUDIT & RISK HE & REMLN N

NAME OF MRECTOR BOARD OF DI“[nD“ MANALTHMENT COUNSITTEE A MHI\J?IHHEE;‘:;I:[]:[

Ch Mucen Afral 55 &4 13
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara 4% 02 (by lnvitation) 27
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shiran 53 - 23
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara s [ .
Prof. Khalid Ariz Mirga Tl 44 3
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha s 13 .
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar kT3 . N3
Ms. Jahanars Sappad Almad 45 14 :

Leave of absence was granted to the members who could not attend meeting(s).

ELECTIONS OF DIRECTORS
Elections of directors were held in the Extraordinary General Mecting of the Company on July
<4, 2023, and seven dircctors were unanimously elected unopposed for the next term of three
vears effecting from July 27, 2023,
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DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM

As atJune 30, 2023, six out of eight directors are centified directors whereas the remaining two
directors are exempted. Hence, the Company is fully compliant with the Regulation No. 19(1) of
the Regulations.

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The Company conducted internally a Board Performance Evaluation in the financial year 2022-
23. This indicated that the Board broadly achieved the Company's objectives during the year.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS® & OFFICERS' REMUNERATION

As per the requirements of the Regulations, there is a formal and transparent procedure in place
for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors. No director is involved in deciding
his / her own remuneration.

The Board reviews the fee of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors for
attending the Board and committees meetings, which are subsequently presented to shareholders
in the Annual General Mecting for approval. Remuneration to Chief Executive Officer and
Directors are disclosed in note # 42 1o the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023,

The remunerations of Board's Officers have been approved by the HR & Remuneration
Committee.

RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Companies (Related Party
Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018, the Board of Directors
has approved the related party transactions upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the policy approved by the Board.

TRADING OF SHARES

During the year under review, trades in the shares of the Company were carried out by Major
Sharcholders which was communicated to the Regulators in due course. Besides this, no
Director, Executive or their spouses and minor children carried out trade in the shares of the
Company,

CHANGES TO THE MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, appointment of new Chief Financial Officer was made with the
approval of the Board. The Board is confident that the new team will continue to perform for the
growth of the Company.

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

The Company held the Corporate Bricfing Session at its registered office on October 25, 2022,
wherein the management of the Company enlightened the participants about the Company’s
operation, financial performance and future prospects. The session was attended by investors and
other stakcholders, followed by an interactive question-and-answer session.
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CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
Dunng the year under review, the Company contributed a sum of Rs. 6,692 million (previous
year Rs. 4,847 million) to the Government exchequer on account of duties and taxes.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Company has fully complied with the requirements of the Regulations. A statement to this
effect is annexed with this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company fully meets its obligation as a social corporate citizen. The Company always takes
constructive interest in social matters which may not be directly related to the business, and
makes donations 1o charitable institutions, hospitals and trusts. During the vear 2022-23, the
Company has donated Rs. 3.1 million to various welfare & charitable arganizations.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT & WELFARE SCHEMES

The Company continues to make available the use of its property to Association for Special
Persons (DARAKHSHAN). Presently 75 disabled women are getting training in this vocational
school for helping destitute handicapped women to be self-reliant, computer literate and
contnbuting members of society. This property has been provided free of charge by the
Company with furniture and fittings and the Company bears the cost of utilities and
mamntenance,

WELFARE SPENDING FOR UNDER-PRIVILEGED CLASS
The Company continues to operate and support a Social Security Dispensary on its premises.
This caters the needs of workers and their families.

CORPORATE PHILANTHROPY
The Company continues to give donations to institutions in accordance with its policies for
corporate philanthropy.

ENVIRONMENT, QUALITY, HEALTIH & SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Company and its management are strongly committed to achieving sustainable
Environmental & Quality Management. The Company supports sustainable development and
promotes  greater environmental responsibilitics and has achieved Certification of 150
9001:2015, 45001:2018, 14001:2015. The Company continues to test emissions and effluents
through laboratories certified by Punjab Environment Protection Agency. The central lab of the
Company has been accredited by Pakistan National Accreditation Council (PNAC) on 150
17025:2017.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is strongly commutted to conductingits business in ways that provide all personnel
with a safe and healthy work environment. It has developed an HSE management system that
cnsures worker safety. The Company's systematic approach is to manage Occupational Safety &
Health under well-defined standards and requirements.
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The Company has integrated safe working practices by developing a rigorous set of operational
controls to manage all aspects of nisk in its operations. Full implementation of these controls
ensures that the Company is providing a safe work place for its all employees.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

In order 1o utilize the natural resources in an effective and efficient manner, the Company has
installed Vanable Frequency Drives (VFDs) which has resulted in electnicity savings. The
Company has also switched electrical equipment/machines to energy cfficient devices. Further,
the Company has lowered the amount of electricity consumed by replacing Gl sheets with fiber
sky sheets in its halls which allows natural sunlight to come across in the working areas.

EXNVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted 3R’s of solid waste management (Reduce, Recover & Recycle) so
that the Company ¢an manage our natural resources more efficiently and to dispose of toxic
waste material in a satisfactory manner. [n this regard, the Company installed a Waste Water
Treatment Plant which is designed for treating the Company waste-water for its reuse or safe
disposal to the environment. Resultantly, the Company has reduced its waste-water wastage from
45.6% to (%%,

The Company has also framed environmental protection policy which promotes tree plantation,
pollution prevention, environment awareness sessions & trainings, water conservation and
various other steps to protect human health and environment. Further, the Company has arranged
cvents related to World Environment Day, Dengue Awareness Campaign, Smog Awareness
Seminar,

COMNSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted and implemented varnous safety parameters for the production and
supply of its products as per applicable laws. These parameters are not only related to the safety
of its workers but are also linked with the safety of its consumer. The Company, in order to
promote best quality of its product, has labeled the awarencss sticker on its product to break the
bottles after consumption in order to avoid bogus fillings or reuse of the bortles.

EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS

The Company promotes equal employment opportunities for all kind of persons without any
discnmination and disabilities. Currently 20 workers/staff with different disabilitics are employed
in the Company which is more than the quota fixed by the government authorities.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES

The Company conducts its business with integnty and in accordance with high standards of
ethical behavior and in compliance with laws/regulations that governs the operations of the
Company. In this regard, the Company has prepared and implemented the Code of Conduct
which covers business ethics, transparency, fairness, professionalism, conflict of interest,
workplace harassment, equal opportunity environment, ctc.

Further, the Company has also prepared and approved the Whistle blowing Policy to encourage
individuals to reveal and report any kind of matters which, in their opinion, may cause potential
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financial or reputational loss to the Company. This policy also degrades wrong doing, fraud,
bribery, discrimination, black mailing, stealing and other activities in order to minimize the
chances of corruption. However, as per policy Company will not entertain anonymous
complants/letters.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Audit of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2023, has been concluded and
the Auditors have issued therr Audit Reports on the Company's financial statements and Review
Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Regulations. The Auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer
Hadi & Co. shall retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, and being eligible have
ofTered themselves for re-appointment for the financial year 2023-24. The Board proposes their
appointment as Auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2024, on the recommendation of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. This shall be subject to the approval of the
sharcholders at the Annual General Mecting on October 20, 2023.

OUTLOOK

Business environment of the Country has become very challenging because of massive currency
devaluation, spiraling inflation, high interest rates and new super tax rales. However, the
Company remains committed to providing high quality products to its consumers and 1o improve
sharcholders values,

The coming months present unprecedented challenges and uncenainties with continuing political
instabality, exchange rate volatility and high inflation. In view of the unpredictable economic
environment, the Company's management remains alert in their endeavor 1o continue to bring
the best possible value to their sharcholders.

APFPRECIATION

We express our pleasure for the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the
Company, Our thanks are also extended to our customers, suppliers, bankers, advisors,
sharcholders and vanous government departments for their continuous support.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

P __ ki

Isphanyar M. Bhandara Pervalz Akhtar
Chicf Executive Officer Durector
Rawalpind

September 15, 2023
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NET SALES vs PROFIT AFTER TAX COMPARISON

.'—"‘"f'i"‘

/_\’/

EARNINGS PER SHARE vs CASH DIVIDEND COMPARISON
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED

Pattern of Sharehalding

As of June 10, 2021

| # of Shareholders | shareholdings’ Slab | Total Shares Held |
463 1 o 160 16,630
147 101 ta 500 B6,693
126 501 to 1000 94,679
167 1001 Lo 5000 390,729
64 5001 to 10000 455 880
21 10001 to 15000 160,174
20 15001 io 20000 351,047
11 20001 to 215000 241,545
) 25001 to 30000 55,304
4 30001 to 35000 127,220
5 35001 to 40000 150,282
1 40001 to £5000 431,700
3 45001 to 50000 142,057
i 50001 to 55000 102,240
1 55001 o GOCO0 56,954
Fi 60001 to 5000 120,505
i 0001 to T2000 2,706
1 BO0O1 to 25000 82513
2 a5001 to SO000 177.598
1 125001 to 130000 115,285
1 145001 1o 150000 146,884
1 155001 to 160000 156,487
1 160001 to 165000 160,761
1 195001 ta 2000040 195,330
1 245001 to 250000 250,000
1 300001 1] 305000 304,060
1 315001 o 120000 319,441
1 165001 to 370000 369,589
1 420001 to 42 5000 420,232
1 455001 to 460000 457,040
1 455001 to A 70000 259 503
1 470001 to 475000 470,060
1 500001 te 505000 500,008
1 635001 to 640000 617,990
1 675001 to EBOO00 678,516
1 T20001 o T25000 710,815
1 875001 to BROOOD 879,143
1 895001 to 00000 E35,100
1 S9TO001 to ST5000 71,700
1 1000001 to 1005000 1,000,074
1 1700001 to 1705000 1,701,527
1 3170001 to 3175000 3,174 540
i 4030001 to A035000 & 030,810
1 5555001 1o S5E0000 5.5559 815
1268 27,663,630
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Foreword

Murree Brewery Company Ltd ("MBC"] has built a reputation for conducting its business with integrity, in
accordance with high standards of ethical behavior, and in compliance with the laws fregulations that
govern our business. This reputation is among our mast valuable assets and ultimately depends upon
the individual actions of each of our employees all over the country.

The MBC code of conduct has been prepared to assist each of us in our efforts to not only maintain but
enhance this reputation. It provides guidance for business conduct in a number of areas and references
to more detalled corporate policies for further direction.

The code of conduct applies to all affiliates, employees and others who act on our behalf countrywide,
within all sectors, regions, areas and functions.

The adherence of all employees to high standards of Integrity and ethical behavior is mandatory and
benefits all stakeholders viz our customers, our communities, our shareholders and ourselves.

It carefully checks for compliance with the code by providing suitable information, prevention and
control tools and ensuring transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking creative measures if
and as required.
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General Principles

Compliance with the laws, regulations, statutory, ethical Integrity and falrness, is a constant
commitment and duty of all MBC employees and its divisions.

MBC business and activitles have to be carried out in a transparent, honest and falr way, In good faith,
and In full compliance. Any form of discrimination, corruption, forced or child labor is rejected.
Particular attention is paid to the acknowledgement and safeguarding of the dignity, freedom and
equality of human beings.

All MBC employees, without discrimination or exception whatsoever, respect the principles and
contents of the code in their actions and behaviors while performing their functions and according to
thelr responsibilities, because compliance with the code bs fundamental for the guality of their working
and professional performance. Relationships among MBC employees, at all levels, must be characterized
by honesty, falrness, cooperation, lovalty and mutual respect.

The belief that one is acting in favor or to the advantage of MBC can never, in anyway, justify-not even
in part-any behavior that conflicts with the principles and content of the code.

The MBC Code of Conduct alms at gulding the "MBC Team™ with respect to standards of conduct
expected In areas where improper activities could result in adverse conseguences to the company, harm
its reputation or diminish it competitive advantage. Every member of the MBC is expected to adhere to,
and firmly inculcate in his/her everyday conduct; this mandatory framework; any contravention or
deviation will be regarded as misconduct and may attract disciplinary action In accordance with the
Company services and relevant laws.
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Ethics, Transparency, Falrness, Professionalism

In conducting its business MBC is inspired by and complies with the principles of loyalty, faimess,
transparency, and efficlency.

Any action, transaction and negotlation performed and generally, the conduct of MBC employees in the
performance of thelr duties Is inspired by the highest principles of falrness, completeness and
transparency of information, clarity and truthfulness of all accounting documents in compliance with the
applicable laws in force and internal regulations.

Bribes, illegitimate favors, request Tor personal benefits of one or others. Either directly or through third
parties, Is prohibited without any exception.

It is prohibited to pay or offer, directly or indirectly, money and material benefits and other advantages
of any kind to third parties, whether representatives of governments, public officers or private
employees, in order to influence or remunerate the actions of their office,

Accepting gifts or any other form of hospitality is not allowed as commercial courtesy, as it may
compromise the integrity and reputations of either party, and can be constructed by an impartial
observer as aimed at obtaining undue advantages. Only company give aways are acceptable.

Company Information

MBC ensures the correctness of company's information, by means of suitable procedures for in-house
management and communication to the cutside,
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Conflict of Interest
MBC expects all employees to be free from actual or potential conflicts of interest.

A conflict of interest occurs whenever the prospect of direct or indirect personal gain may influence or
appear to Influence your judgments or actions while conducting Company’s business.

Each member of MBC has a prime responsibility towards the Company and Is expected to avold
activities or transactions that clash directly with the interests of the Company. Such situations could
arise in a number of ways. Some of the specifically forbidden situations are cutlined below. This list is
however, neither exhaustive nor all-inclusive. Incase of doubt, the advice of the management or Chief
Executive should be sought.

Any member of the MBC or any dependent member having an interest in any crganization supplying
goods or services to the Company.

Any member of the MBC participating in any external activity directly or indirectly that competes with
the Company in any manner,

Any member of the MBC having direct, indirect interest or family connection, with an external
organization that has business dealings with MBC, without fully disclosing to the management of the
Company details of such connections and interests.

Any member of MBC having any relative working with MBC and not disclosing details of the same to the
management of the Company.
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Confidentiality

A member of MBC shall not keep or make coples of correspondence documents, papers and records, list
of dlients or customers without the prior approval.

A member of MBC shall not disclose or reveal any information on the behalf of the Company to
print/electronic media as well as any other information medium. All information shall be released
through/by the Marketing department or designated individual (s).

Agreement with Licenses, Distributors, Agents, Sales Representatives, Suppliers or Consultants

Agreements with above shall clearly specify the services to be performed for the Company, the amount
to be pald or recelpts and all other relevant terms and conditions.

All payments or recelpts and transactions shall be supported by documents.
Workplace Harassment

Every employee has the right to work in an environment that is free from harassment and in which
issues of harassment will be resolved without fear of reprisal. Harassment will not be permitted or
cendoned within MBC whether it is based on a person's race, color, ethnic or national origin, age,
gender, real, or suspected sexual orientation, religion or perceived religious affiliation, disability, or
other personal characteristic.

MBC demands that there shall be no harassment in personal working relationships either inside or
outside the Company. Such behaviors are strictly forbidden and are as follows:

= Creaticn of an intimidating, hostile, lsolating or in any case discriminatory environment for
individual employees or groups of employees

*  Unjustified interference in the wok performed by others

* Placing of cbstacles in the way of the work prospects and expectations of others merely for
reasons of personal competitiveness or because of other employees

* Proposing private interpersonal relations despite the recipient’s explicit or reasonably clear
distaste
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Equal Opportunity Environment

MBC recognizes the value of striving for a balanced work force and is committed to the principles of
equal opportunity, equality of treatment, and creating a dynamic climate where diversity Is valued as a
source of enrichment and opportunity,

All phases of the employment relationship- including, recruitment, hiring, training, promation,
compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs, and leaves of absences-will be carried out by all managers
without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnic or national origin or disability.

Protection of Company Assets and Proprietary Information

Confidential information is any information that is not publically known and that has value to
MEBC. It may be in written, electronic, or any other form.

It is duty of each member of the MBC to protect, use and operate all the corporate assets with utmost
care, due diligence and honesty. In case it Is cbserved by any member of the MBC that the corporate
assets are being misused/ mishandled by scme other members / individuals the matter should be
immediately reported to the Management of the Company. Corporate assets include moveable and
immaovable property of the Company.

Dealing in Securities/Shares & Insider Trading

MBC employess must not deal in MBC shares on the basis of privileged information.

MBC employee are forbidden to convey Inside information at any time to other person or encourage another
person to deal in shares of MBC or any other Company on the basis of such information, even If the
employee does not profit directly from the arrangement.

MBC employee should be aware of and comply with any local laws and regulations governing shares
dealings,in case any employee o his / her spouse deals in the Company’ s shares, he / her must notify
the Company Secretary with full particulars within two days from the date of the transaction.

END
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies [Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies |[Code of Corporate
Governance] Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Murree Brewery
Company Limited for the year ended 30 June 2013 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of
the Regulaticns,

The responsibility for complisnce with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibdity 15 to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compllanie with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any nan-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review I3 limited primarily to inguiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 1o comply with the
Regulations.

A3 2 part of our audit of the financial statements we are reguired to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systerms sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective sudit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
cowers all risks and controds or Lo form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and riska.

The Regulations require the Company 1o place before the Audt Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party trantactiont, We are only required and have ensured compliance of this reguirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Commitiee.

Based on our review, nothing has come 1o our attention which causes us to Belleve that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compllance, in all material respects, with the
requitements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June?023.

gty T.......-r'nl-.-.l.: Ata.

EPMIG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

hlamabad
21 September 2023

UDIN: CRI0IIL02ASMTIIVEO XS
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies { Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Murree Brewery Company Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2023

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are eight (08) as per the following:

a) Male : S1% [6)
b} Female : Twa (2}

ra

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names
a) Independent Dhrectors Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr, Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

b} MNon-Executive Directors Ch. Mucen Afral
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

¢) Executive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

d) Female Durectors Mirs, Goshu M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them 15 serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to dissemunate it throughout the company along wath its supporting policies and procedures;

L. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corperate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been

taken by the Board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2017 and this Regulations;
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The mectings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and this Regulations;

Out of eight directors, two directors meet the exemption requirement of Directors’ Training
Program and six directors have obtained the Directors” Training Program certification in prior
years,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

The Chief Exccutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

al Audit and Hisk Management Committee
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - (Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afral - {Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - (Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - (Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - {Member)

b) HE & Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - (Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afzal - (Member)
dr. Aamur Hussain Shirazi - (Member)
Mr. lsphanyar M. Bhandara - {Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - (Member)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid commitiees have been formed, documented and
advised 1o the committees for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quanterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees during the yvear 2022-
23, were as per following

(a) Audit and Risk Management Committee - 04,
(b) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Commuttee - 03,

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function 1o M/s BDO Ebmahim & Co. Chartered

Accountant, who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;
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The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan and that they and
the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or any director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Companics Act, 2017 this Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have obsenved IFAC
guidelines 1n this regard,;

We confirm that all the requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

S il I

Isphanyar M. Bhandara Pervalz Akhtar
Chief Executive Officer Director

Rawalpindi
September 15, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have sudited the annexed financial sistements of Murres Brewery Company Limied (ihe Company),
which comprise the stalement of financial position as &l 30 June 2023, and the staternent of profil o loss,
the statenent of comprehensive incoma, the statement of changes in equty, the statement of cash fiows for
e year then ended, and nodes 1o the financial statements, inciudng & summary of signdficant

policies and offer sxplanatory informaton, and we state that we have obtained all the informaton and
erplanations which, 1o tha best of our knowledge and belfed, were necessary for the purposes of the sudit

I pur cpeuon Bnd o the best of owr information and socording to the explanations given o us, the
staternent of linancal posibon, stalement of profil or loss, 1he staterment of comprebensia inoome, the
siatement of changes in eguity and the siotement of cash fows topether with the nobes forming part thereol
conlorm with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable n Pakistan and ghve the information
required by the Companis Act, 2017 [(KIX of 2017). In the mannss 8o required and respectively ghe a trua
and fair view of the stale of te Company's afars a3 ol 30 June 2023 and of the profil, the comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and is cash fiows fof the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducied ouwr audd n acoordance with International Standands on Audiding (15A3) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilites under those standands ane further described in the Auditors’ Responsibiities
fior thee Audit of the Financial Staterments secton of our repor. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Intersatonal Ethics Standards Board Tor Accountants” Code of Ethacs for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charersd Accountants of Pakisian (the Code) and we have
fulfilled cur othet ethical responsibilities in actordance with the Code. We believe thai the audit evidence
we hawe cbtained i sufficient and appropriale 1o provide B basis for our opinion.

Koy Audit Matiors

Key sudit maltiers are those matiers thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current penod. Thess matiers were addressed in te context of ocur audit of
the Linancial stalemonts as @ whole, and in forming our opnecn thereon, and we do mot provide & separabe
opinion on hess mallars

Folowing are the bey audil maiters:
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5. No.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition

Refer notes 4.14 and 31 1o the
financial statements,

During the year ended 30 June 2023,
the Company recognised nel revenus
of Rs. 18,597 million from sale of focd
and beverages.

We identfied recognition of revenus
as a key audit matter because
revanua 15 ona of the key performance
indicators of the Company and gives
nsa to an inharent sk thal revenue
could be subject to misstaternent 1o
meet expectatons of targets.

Our audd procedures in this area incheded,
among others:

= phtaining an understanding of the process relating
to recognition of revenue and testing the design
and implementation and operating effectivenessol
of key internal controls over recording ofrevenue;

& companng a sample of revenue transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders sales
invoices, delvery documents and other relevant
undertying documents;

» comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recorded before and after the year-end with the
sales orders, sales invoices, delivery documents
and other relevant underlying documeniation 1o
assess if the related revenue was recorded inthe

appropriate accountingpenod,;

¢ companing the detads of a sample of journal
entries posted 1o revenue accounts during the
year. which met certain specific risk-basedcriteria,
with the relevant underyingdocumentation

" g3sessing whether the accounting policies for
revenue recognition comply with therequirements
of the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan;and

= evaluating the adequacy of presentation and
disclosures related 10 revenue as requiredunder
the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable inPakistan.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipmant

Refer notes 9 and 17 1o the financial
statements.

During the year, the Company
recognized surplus aggregating to

Our audit procedures in this area included,
among others:

» inwolving our valuation specialist to suppor us in
evaluating the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and assessing the reasonablenessof
key estimates and assumplions used mtha




o g i
.

.il"!i"l..r'l:-u :Icf n"r:r P T .ruf U.'E.J’

Marree Browery Cempany Liniled

5. Ho. | Key sudit matter How the matter was addressed in our audif
Rz 371 million on revaluatson of valuations conducted by the professional vakser
iand, bulldings, plant, machinery engaged by the Company,
and equipment carmed out &t 30
Jung 2073, = gvaluating the scouracy of information providechy
the Company 1o professional valuer by inspecting
We Hentifed the revaluation of undarbying documentatan;
operating flaed nasets &3 o hey sudid
matier due to significance of the = EESENEng e appropnateness of Bocounting of
amourt of reveluation surpius in revaiuadion surplus and related adjustments n the
felation to the francad staterments financial siatements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting slandands as appicablein
Paksstan;and
» evaluating the adequacy of presentation and
disclosures related o revaluation of property, plant
and eguipmeni a3 required under tha
&nd reporting slandands as Apphcable inPakistan

Information Other than the Financial Statemants and Auditors’ Reporl Thereon

Wanagement is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
mcluded in the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2027, bul does nol include the financial
stxloments and owr auditors’ report thereon.

Cour opinion on the financial siatements does Rol cover the ofher information and we do nol express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.,

In connecton with our audil of the financad siatements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing 80, consder whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statlements of our knowiedge obtained in the auwdit or otherwise appears 1o be materially messtated, |f,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude hat there |s 8 material misstatement of this other
irforrmation, we sre reguired 1 repor thal fact We hawve nothing fo report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and tir presentation of the financial statements in
actordance with the acoounting and reporting siandards as applicabls in Pakisian and the requirements of
Companigs AcL 201T (XIX of 2017} and for such internal control a3 managemant delermines is necessary
io enabie the preparation of financial slaterments that are free from malenal misstaiesmeant, whelher dus 1o
fraud or error

in prepanng the financial slatements, management is responsible for sssessing the Company’s ability 1o
confinue 8% 8 going contern, discosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the
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going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to bguidate the Company or 1o cease
operatons. of has no reallstc aternatve bul o do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Cur objectves are to obitain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal staterments as & whols are
free from material misstaternent, whethar due 1o fraud or error, and 1o ssue an auditors” repor that
inchydes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
sudit conducted in acoordance with [3As a8 applcable in Pakistan wil always detect & material
misstatement when i exists. Mostatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matertal if
indrecually or in sggregates, ey could masonably be expecied 1o influence the sconomic decisions of
wiers taken on the basis of these fnancial staterments.,

As part of an sudd in accordance with ISAs as applicabile in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepteism throughout the audil. Wa alsa;

= ldentify and assess the rsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whather dus 1o
fraud or error, design and perform sudd procedures responsive o thoss risks, and obtain audit
evidencs thatl is sufficient and appropriate to provide 8 bases fof our opinion, The risk of not delecting
a material misstaternent resulting from fraud i higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
rivoive coliusion, forgery, intentional omasions, misrepreseniations or the override of infemalcontrol.

= Ottain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudiprocedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internaloontrol.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estmates and relaled disclosures made bymanagement

* Conchude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem hasis of accountingand,
based on the audl evidence cbiained, whether 8 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continua as a going concern. if
we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in cur auditars’ report
1o the related disciosures in the financial siatements or, if such disciosures are nadequate, to modify
our opinion. Dur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cblained up 1o the date of our suditors’
report, However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue &S A

goingconcern.
L Emuhmﬂmmlnﬂmﬂﬂﬁwwm.mh

caciosures, and whether the fnancial statements represent the underlying transactions and evenisin
a manner that achieves lalrpresentabion

¥/e communicate with the board of directors regarding, among cther matiers, the planned scope and timing
of the audt end signifcant sudi findings, Intluding any significant deficiencies in internal control
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that wa idencify during our audit

WWe also provide the board of dreciors with a stalemsnt thal we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other maters
that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matiers communicated with the board of directons, we delermine those matiers that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial stalements of the curment period and are tharefors the ey audd
matiers. We describe these mabiers n our auditors” repor unless law of regulalion precludes publc
disclosure mbout the mabier or when, in extremely rere crcumstances, we determine that & matier should
nof be communicated n owr report because the adverse comseguonces of doing so would reasonably ba
expeciod b3 oubvigh the publs interes! benefils of such communecation

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our awdi, we Turther report Bl in owr opineon:

a] Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as reguired by Bw Companirs Act, 201T[XIX
el2 T

b} the statement of financial positon, the staternent of profif or ioss, the statement of comprehensive
incoma, the statement of changes in eguity and the statement of cash fiows together with thenoles
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Acl, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account andretums;

c) imvestments made, expenditure incurmed and guarantess extended during the year were forthe
purpose of the Company's business; and

d} rakat deductible at source under the Zakat snd Ustr Ordinance, 1080 (XW11 of 1820}, was
deduciedby the Company and deposided in the Central Zakal Fund establshed under section T of
thatOrdinance.

The engagement partner on the sudi resulting in this independent auddors’ report is Muhammad Danesh.

gy Tam— Hdl fla

KEPMG Taseer Hadl & Co.
Charfered Accountants

Islamabad
21 September 2027

UDIN: ARZOIIN0249sBeFoPSNA
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Murree Browery Cempany Liniled

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Merree Frewery Cetepany Liviled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

THE COMPANY AND ITS OFERATIONS

Murree Brewery Company Limated (“the Company”) was incorporated under the repealed Indian
Comparies Act (now the Companies Act, 2017) in February 1586] asa public Lmited Company m
Pakistan. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company is principally engaged in the manafactuning of alcoholic beer, Pakistan Made
Foreign Liguor (PMFL), pon-alcoholic beer, acrated water (pon-alcobolic products). jusces and
food products, mineral water, glass botties and jars. The Company is presently operating three
divisions pamely Liguor, Tops and Glass fo carry out its priscipal activities,

The registered office of the Company is situated st National Park Road in Rawalpind:, Pakistan.
The addresses of the Company s corporate office. manufacturing facilities and warchouses owned
by the Company located in Rawalpindi, Hattar, Lahore and Gujramwala are desclosed in note
17,15, The addresses of the Company s other sales offices'warchouses are a8 follows:

- Khasra No 411, 414, 415, Khatooni No 565, 566, 567, Khewat No 295, 196, 297, Maura
Jaliari Bhai Khan, GT Road, Tehsil Gujar Khaa & District Rawalpindi;

«  Har Gali, Ayubis Road, Muwrres;

- Mansoor Abad, near Sant Sing ralway gate, Jumra Road, Farualabad,

+  |BB, pear Winter Time, Srmall Industries Estate, Sahiwal and
28-B, Small Industrial Estate, Main Labore Foad, Sarpodha

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREFPARATION
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared ia sccordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standands applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:
International Financial Reporting Stuadards ([FRS Standards), issued by the [ntermational
Accourting Standards Board (LASB) as notified under the Companses Act, 2017; and
Provisions of and directives issusd under the Commpanles Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standands, the provisions of and directives nsued under the Companies Act. 2017 have been
folloaed
Details of the Company s accounting policies are included m note 4.

Basls of measurement

These financial staternents have been prepared under hhstorwal cost convention except for the
fullowing ktems, which are measured on an aliernative basis oo each reporting date.

liem Measurement basls
Land, building, plant, machmery | Revaluation model
aad sgquipment

Investment property Faur valoe moade]
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Investments held for trading Fair value through profit o loss
Emplayee benefit Fresent valwe of the Jefined benefit Liakiliy, determined
through actuarial valuation, less fair value of plan assets

The methods used 10 measare fair values are disclosed in the respective policy notes.
13 Functienal and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rupee or PKR), which s the
Company's functional currency. All amousts have been rounded 1o the pearest thousand, ualess
otherwise stated.

p | Usi of judgments and evtimates

In prepanng these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that
afTect the application of the Company”s sccounting policics and the reporied amounts of siscts,
lizkilsties, moome and expenses

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenience and various other
factors that are beleved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgments about the carrying values of sssety and hiabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these extimates.

The estimates and underlying mssumplions aré moviewed on an oagoing basis. Revisions o
scoounbing estimates are recognized prospectively,

Judgments, assumptions and extimates made in applying acoounting policies that have the efTects
oa the amounty recogrised in the financial staternents are as follows:

= Note 4.1 and 17: Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant
and equipment;

= Tote 421 and 15 Useful ves and depreciation method of right of use nssct and lease
term and discount rate used o caloulate lease labilety;

= Note 4.2 and 19 Useful lives, residual values and amontization method of intangsble
aiiet,

« Noete 4.3 and 21 Fair value of investment property;

= Mote 44 and 23 Provision for dlow moving imventonies;

= Note 49, 4.10 pnd note 16: Recognition and messurement of provisioms and
contingencien: key sssumptiond sbout the hkelihood and magritude of an outflow of
FesOUrcEs,
sote 402 and |2 Memsurernent of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial
asFumpilions,

= Note 4,122 and 13: Recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets and estimation of
ERCONTIE LAY P iShons]
MNote 4 8.1 and 26: Measurement of aliowance for expected credit loss of financial assety
a1 armortised cost;

=  Note 482 Impairment lows of noa-linancial assets other than inventories; and

=  Mole 4,14 and 31; Revenue recognition

Charge in respect of Workers' profit participation fund has been recognized based on industrial
profit attributable to the production and sale of food and beverages.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
Fair value measurement

*Fair value® is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a Liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a Lability reflects its non-performance risk.

A number of the Company’s accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and Labiities.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the
assct or hiability take place with safficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an cngoing basis,

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price-ie. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or Lability
nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be
tnsignificant in relation 10 the measurcment, then the financial instrument is mitially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropnate
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction s closed out.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. Management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurenents, ineluding Level 2 fair values

Management regularly revicws significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used 1o measure fair values, then
the management asscsses the cvidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses cbservable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
Liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. denived from prices).
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Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dats
{unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a Liability fall into different levels of the
fair value lerarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reparting period during which the change has occurred.

3 STANDARDS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
acvounting periods beginning on or after | July 2023:

*  Classification of liabilities as current of non-current (Amendments to IAS | in January 2020)
apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024 (as deferred
vide amendments to IAS | in October 2022) with carlier application permitted. These
amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as
current. Convertible debt may need 10 be reclassified as *current”. The standard also amends the
aspect of classification of Lability as non-curreat by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right
at the end of the reporting peniod to defer the settlement of Liability for at least twelve months
afier the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance
of to reschedule payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a
liability as current or non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in
sccordance with [AS 8,

*  Non-<current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS | in October 2022) aims to improve
the information an entity provides when its right 1o defer settlernent of a liability for at least
twelve months is subject to comphance with conditions. The amendment is also intended to
address concerns about classifying such a lLability as current or non-current. Only covenants
with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a
lLiabality as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply after the
reporting date (ie. future covenants) do not affect a lability's classification at that date.
However, when non-current Liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need
to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become
repayable within 12 months affer the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024, with carlier application
permutted. These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies that may
have carly-adopted the previously issued but not yet cffective 2020 amendments to IAS | (as
referred above),

* Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaschack (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds
subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the
requirements 1o be accounted for as a sale, The amendment confirms that on initial recognition,
the seller-lessee includes vanable lease payments when it measures a lease liability arising from
a sale-and-leascback transaction. Afler mitial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the peneral
requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or
boss relating to the right of use it retams. A seller-lessee may sdopt different approaches that
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satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginaing on or after | January 2024 with earlier application permatted.
Under IAS B, a seller-lessee will need 1o apply the amendments retrospectively to sale-and-
beaschack transactions entered into or after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 and will
aeed to identify and re-cxamine sale-and-leasehack transactions enfered into  since
implementation of [FRS 16 in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease
payments. If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments ansing from Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback for an earlier period, the entity shall disclose that fact.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS | and IFRS Practice Statement 1) - the
Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies and to help companies provide uscful accounting policy disclosures. The key
amendments 1o [AS 1 include:
— requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;
— clanfying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events of
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and
— clanfying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events
of conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to acvounting pelicy disclosures. The amendments are
effective for annual rcporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 with carlier
application permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to [AS 8) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clanfying that they are monctary amounts in the financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty, The amendments also clanfy the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the ohjective sct out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective
for periods beginning on or after | January 2023, with carlier application permitted, and will
apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
occurming on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period 1a which the company
applics the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities ansing from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
IAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (TRE) so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise 1o equal and offsciting temporary differences. As a result, companies
will need to recognire a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax lability for temporary differences
arising on initial recognition of a leasc and a decommissioning provision. For leases and
decommissioning liabilitics, the associated deferred tax asset and Liabilities will need to be
recognized from the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognized as an adjustment 1o retained earnings or other components of equity at that
date. The amendments are effective for annual reponting periods beginning on or after | January
2023 with carlier application permtted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lavestor and its Associate of Jomnt Venture
{Amendments to [FRS 10 and IAS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of
business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction
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that irvolves neither cost nor full step-up of certuin refained mterests in assets that arg not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely uniil the
completion of a broader review,

Supplicy Finance Armngements (amendments o IAS 7 and IFRS 7) introdoce two mew
disclosure obpectives for o company to provide information about ats supplier firance
arrangements that would enable users (investors) 1o asscss the elfects of theve amangements on
the company s liabilitics and cash flows, and the company*s exposure to Liguidity risk. Under the
amendments, companies alio need 1o disclose the type and effect of non<ash changes in the
carrying amocnts of the faancial liabilines that are part of & supplier linarce arrangement. The
amendments alio add supplier linance amaagements ai 8a example to the existing disclosure
requiremnents o IFRS 7 on faciors & company might comsider when providing specific
quantitative liquidity risk disclosures about its financial liabilities. The amendments are effective
for penods beginning on of alter | January 2024, witk early applcation permitted. However,
some reliefl from providing certan information in the year of initial application is available.

International Tax Reform = Pillar Two Model Bules (amendments to LAS 12 ) introduce
Tollowing new dusclosure requinements:

Once tax law s enacted but before fop-up tax s elfective

disclose information that is known or can be reasonably estimated and that helps users of ifs
financial statements 1o understand its exposure 10 Pillar Two income taxes at the reporting
date. If information is not known of cannot be reasonably estimated af the reporting date, then
n company discloses a stniement 1o that ¢ffect and information about s progress it asscssing
the Pallar Two expoture.

After top-up tax is effective: disclose current tax expense related 1o top-up tax.

These amendments apply from 3] December 2023, Mo disclosures are requared in infenim
perods ending on of before 31 December 2023

The above amendments are pot Likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies as set out below have been applicd consistently 1o all penods presenied
in these nancal statements:

Properiy, plant and equipment and sdyvances for capital expenditures

Hecognition and measurement

lems of property, plant and equipmeni are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less sccumulated depreciation and any sccumulated impairment losses except
for:

= Lands are stated at revalued amounts

«  Buildings are stated ot revalued amounts e sccumulated depreciation and impatrment
losses, if any,
Plant, mackinery and equipment is stated af revalued amounts less accumulated depreciaton
and imparment losses, if any
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- Capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure s cammed a1 cost less
imparrment loss, if any.

ltems in property, plant and cquipment are recognized at revalued amounts based on valuation by
external independent valuer. Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is credited to a
capital reserve in sharcholders’ equity and presented as a separate line item in statement of
financal position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, buildings, plant machinery and
equipmentare recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation surplus in sharcholders’ equity, To the extent that increase reverses a decrease
previously recognized in profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss.

Decreases that reverse previous increascs of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income 1o the extent of the remaining surplus attributable 10 the asset; all other
decreases are charged to profit or loss.

Lonrg term leases of land in which the Company obtains control of the land are accounted for as
property, plant and equipment and presented as *leaschold land’®,

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.

The completed [ acquired capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure is
transferred 1o the respective item of operating fived assets when it becomes available for intended
1178

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
theyare accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing

the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and
is recognised in profitor loss. Land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Leased asscts
are depreciated over the shorter of the leased term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Rates of
depreciation/estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are mentioned in note
17.1 to these financial satements.

Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
ssset charged to the statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost,
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ret of tax, i reclnsified from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 1o
unappropriated profit

Depreciation on additions 1o property, plant and equipment is charged on prorata basis from the
date on which the item of property, plant and equipment is acquired or capitalized while no
depreciation is charged from the date on which property, plant and equipment is disposed ofl’
derecognired.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied 1o investment property, the property is
remeasured o fais value and reclassified sccordingly. Any gain arsing on this remeasurement is

recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment Joss on the specific
propenty, with any remaining gain recogaised in OC1 and presented in the revalieation reserve
Any loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, 1o the extent that an amount is included in the
revaluation surplus for that property, the loss is recognised in OCT and reduces the revaluation

surplus within equity
Intangible ascts
Recognitlon and measurement

Intangible assets that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less sccumulated amortization
and any pccumilated imparrment losses

Subsequent evpendifure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefit
embodied in the specilic asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit o
boss a8 incurred.

Amortiration

Amortisatbion i caleulsted to wnte off the cost of intangible sssets less ther estimated
residual values wing the straight-line method over their estimated wicful lives and is recognised in
profit of loss. Amortization ratev'estimated useful lives for current and comparatives are disclosed
in nolz |9.] to these financial siatements.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed a1 each reporting date and
adjusted il appropriate.

lasestmenl property

Investment property is initially measured af cost and subscquently at fair value with any
change therein recognised in profit or loss.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

When investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold,
any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earmings.

Insentorics
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost and net realizable value
except for items in transit which are stated at cost incurred up to the statement of financial
position date less impairment, if any, Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the items to their present location and condition. For items which are slow moving
and'or identified as surplus to the Company’s requirements, adequate provision is made for any
excess book value over estimated net realizable value. The Company reviews the carrying amount
of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if
there i any change in usage pattern or physical form of related stores, spare parts and loose tools.

Stock in trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

= Raw materials are valued at weighted average cost;

- Goods in transit are valued at incurred cost, which includes invoice value and other charges
incurred thercon,

- Cost of finished poods, based on weighted average method, includes direct cost of production
and appropriate portion of production overheads based on normal capacity;

- Work in process including stocks under maturation are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value; and

- Stocks under maturation and work in process are valued at manufacturing cost which
represents direct material, labour and an appropriate share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the items to their present
location and condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes trade debts on the date when they are ongmated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognired when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset {unless it is trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its scquisition or issue. A trade recervable
without significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asset
O iaitial recognition, a financial asset is classified a5 measured at

aj

i

b}

€l

- amortised cost;
= fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT): or
= fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which a financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business mode] for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
asscts are reclassified on the fint day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

it is beld within a business model whose objective is 10 hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash Nows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value throwgh other comprebensive Ingome (FYOCT)

A debt investment 18 measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
desigrated as at FWTPL:

it 15 held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual cash
Mows and selling financial assets; and

its contractial terms give me on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

On initial recogaition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irevocably elect 1o present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCT. This
clection s made on an investment-by-investment basis,

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCT as described above are
measured at FYTIL. On initial recognition, the Company may lrrevocably designate a financial
asact that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOCT as a1
FVTPL if doirg so elminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise,

Subsequent measurement and gaing and losses

Flmancial assets at amortived cost  These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method The amortized cost is
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reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
recognized in profit or loss.

Diebt investments at FYOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair wvalue.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and fosses and impairment
are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCL On de-recognition, gains and losses
sccumulated in OC1 are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financlal assets at FYTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognized in profit or loss.

Equity investment at FVOC] These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value
Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized
in OC1 and are never reclassified 10 profit or loss,

Financial labilities = classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liabality is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, arc recognised i profit or loss. Orher financial
lishilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cifective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recogrised in profit or loss. Any gamn
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

De-recognition

i.
ii.
— substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or

Financial assets
The Company derccognizes a financial asset when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; of
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:

the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control over the financial asset.

Financial liabilithes

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled of expire. The Company also derecognires a financial liability when its lerms are
modified and the cashflows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms s recognized at fair value. On derecognition
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of a financial lability, the difference between the camrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash asscts transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized
in profit or lows.

(MTseiting

Firancial assets and financial Liabalities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offict the amounts and intends either 1o settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
scttle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognired at fair value of consideration 1o be received.
Subsequent 10 initial recognition these are carmed af their amortired cost as reduced by
appropriate charge for expected cradif losses, if any, The Company holds the trade debis with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debis
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Impairment of trade debts and
other receivables is described in note 4.8,

Trade and sther payables

Trade amd other payables are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in fisture for poods and services received. Subsequent to instial recognition, these are carried at
amortized cost.

Imipalrment
Fimancial assets

The Company recognires loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial asscts
measured at amortized cost. For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that s based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the deblors and the exonomic environment.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all posuible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The manimum period considered when estimating ECLx is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company iy exposed to credit risk

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial avsets carried at amortized
coit are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that kave
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fTows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss alliowances for financial assets measured at amontired cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. The gross caming amoont of a fnancial asset is written ofT when
the Company has no reasonsble expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or 8
porton thereol.
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Son-Mranclal assets

The carrying amoust of the Company's assets are reviewed at cach reporting date o determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if asy. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its far
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the extimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money asd the risks specific to the asset. [n the absence of any information about
the fair value of a cash-generating unit, the recoverable amount is deemed to be the value in use.
For the purpose nfimp:immtnm;.ummgmmrdm;rmwunmﬂumlkﬂpmpuf
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of asscts (the “cash-generatng unit”™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset of it cash-generating uni
exceeds it estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profis
or loss. Impairment Josses in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to the carrying
amounts of assets in the cash-generating unit group on pro-rata basis. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the assel carrying amount does not exceed the camying amaunt
that would have been determined, pet of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of 2 past event, and it is probable that an cutflow of cconomic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. at 3 pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific
to the liability, The unwinding of discount is recogrised as finance cost.

Contingent labilities

A contingent Lability is disclosed when the Cormpany has a possible obligation a5 a result of past
cvents, whose existence will be confirmed oaly by the occurrence or nor-occurrence, of one o
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an
cutfllow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised af their face value. [ividend distribution
to the shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which it is declared

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benelits

Short-term employee benefits are eapensed an the related service i3 provided. A Liability 15
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
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obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
ebligation can be estimated reliably.

Delined contribution plan = prosident fund

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided. Prepand contnbutions are revognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available, The Company operates a defined contribution provident
fund scheme for permanent employees. Contributions to the fund are made monthly by the
Compary and employees at the rate of 12% of the basic salary. The fund is managed by its Board
of Trustees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratulty and pension plans

The Company operates defined benefit plans comprising a funded pension and an unfunded
gratuity scheme covering all eligible employees completing the minimum gualifying period of
service a8 kpecified by the scheme,

The Company s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans i calculated separately for cach
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prioe peniods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of aoy plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary wsing
the projected unit credit method When the calculstion results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognised asset i3 Limited 1o the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 1o the plan. To
calculate the present value of economue benefits, comsideration s given 1o any applicable
minimeim funding requirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Lability, which comprise actuarial gains and lomses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income, The Company determines
the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability {asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit lability (asset) durnng the period as a result of contnibutions and benefit
payments. Met interes! expense and other expenses related 1o defined benelit plans are recognised
in profit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. The Company recognises guns and losses on the setilerment of a defined benefis
plan when the settlernent oocur. The pension fund is managed by trustees of the fund who are
responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework.

Compensated leasve absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscouniod basis and are
eapensed a8 the relafed senvices are provided. A liability s recognised for the smount expected o
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be paid under compensated absences i the Company has a present legal of constructive
obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably. The compensated absences are payable to employees & pet
the Company’s policy. The provision is determined on the basis of last drawn salary and
accurmulated leaves balance at the reporting date. Actuarial valuation has ot been carricd out as
the impact of present valuation is comsidered immaterial in the context of overall financial
stalements.

Income tay

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except o
the extent that it relstes to a business combination, of items recognised directly in equity of in
OCl

Current tax

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year at the spplicable tax rates after
taking into account tax credit and tax rebates, if any and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect
of previous year,

Deferred tay

Deferred tax is recogrised in respect of temporary differences between the camying amounts of
assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

. temporary differences on initial recognition of assets o liabilities in & transaction that is
not & bustness combination and that affects neither accounting por taxable profit of loss;
= temporary differences related o investments in subsidianics, associates and joint

arrangements 1o the eatent that the Company is able 1o control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foresceable future, and

. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for crused tax Josses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined hased o business plans for
the Compary and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tay assets are reviewed af each
reporting date and are reduced to the gatent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taable
profits improves, Urrecognired deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that fusure taxable profits will be available
aguinst which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rfes enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, The
measurement of deferred tan reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manaer in
which the Company expects, at the reporting Jate, to recover of seftle the carrying amount of its
nsscts and Labiltees.
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For this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed
o be recovered through sale, and the Company has not rebutted this assumption. Deferred tax
aspets and Labilries are offset if certain criteria are met.

Hisvenue from contracts with costominrs

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, The
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good o service 10 a customer.

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligalioas in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recognition policies,

Type of product Nature and timlng of satislaction of Revenue recognition policies
performance obligations, Including
slpmificant pasment lerms

Liguoy- Customer oblan control of alcoholic Revenue 1 recognized when

Alcobolicbeverages | beverages when the goods are dispatched | the goods are delivered and
from the Company”s warchouse. hawve been accepted by
Invoices are generated ot that point in customers af theif premises
time. Advance payment is received and | Advances received are
there 15 no financing component, No included 1n contract liabilities,
discounts or returns are offered for
aleohole beverages

Liguor - Non. Customer obtain control of non- Revenue s recognized when

Akoholic bevernges

alcobolic beverages when the goods are
deliverad to and have been accepted by
the customers at their premises. Invoices
are penerated af that point in time.
Advarce payment i received and there
i no financing component. Discounts
are offered 1o customers based on
approved rates,

the poosds are delivered and
have been accepted by
custormers at their premises

Cilass products

Customers obiain control of glass
products when the goods are dispatched
from the Company’s warchouse,
Invoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that point in time. Advance
payment is recerved and there s no
financing component. Discounts are
offered 10 customers based on approved
rahes.

Revenoe is recopnied when
the poodds are dispatched from
the Company’s warchouse.

Tops « Local sales

Customers obtain control of lops
products when the poods are delivered 1o
the customer’s premuses. [avoices ane
generated at the end of the day when
cash is collected from the salesman
Sales are made on cash basis, however,

Revenoe is recognised when
the goods are delivered to the
CUstoener s premises.
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sorme contracts allow credit and there i3
no financing component. Discounts are
offered to customers based on approved
rates.

Tops - Sales 1o Customers obtamn control of Tops Revenue 18 recogaised when
distributors, products when the goods are delivered to | the goods are delivered to the
institutions and the customer’s premuses. [avoices are Customer’ s premises,
departments (Tops generated af that pont i time which are
tranaporter) usually payvable within 45 days and

revenue is recognised at thal potat i

time. Some contracts allow ¢redit and

there is po significant financing

component. Discounts are offered 1o

customers based on approved rates.
Tops-Sales to "Customers obtain control of bops Hevenue is recognised when
distnibutors, products when the goods are loaded to the poods are loaded 1o the
institutions and the custormer’s vehicle. Invoices are customer’s vehicle.
departments generaled at that point in time which are
{ Customer usually payable withn 45 days and
tranaporter) revenue iy recognised at that point in

time. Some contracts allow credit and

there is no significant financing

component, Discounts are offered 1o

customers based on approved rates

Some contracts permit the customner to return Bems. Returned goods are exchanged only for new
goods — ie. no cash refunds are offered. For such contracts, revenue 13 fecognised 1o the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulstive revenus
revognised will not oocur,

Contract assets

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for sale of goods
provided these are not yet billed a1 the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to trade
debts when the nghts bevome unconditonal.

Contract lHabilities

Conract liability is the obligation of the Company o transfer goods to 8 customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. I a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods, a contract Lability t revognized when the payment s made.
Contract lisbilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance
obligathons under the contract

Contract cosfy

(i) Costs 1o obtain a contract = Incremental costs of obtaming 3 contract Le., sales commussion
paid to thind parties are sccounted for as contract costs and sre transferred o profit or Joss

70




415

416

417

4.18

rL'l‘-l"'-lﬂq"q f H::t?h': 'H.{. -I-'."U.I-.'!J

Marree Sirewery Cempany Liniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

account based on the systematic pattern of revenve. The Company capitalizes such costs if
revenue relating o such contract has not been recognized and the Company expects 10 recover
such costs,

{n} Costs to full Gll a contract — Costs that relate direcily to 3 contract and are
specifically identificd, generate or enhance resources of the entity and are expected to be
recovered e, direct transportation and insurance costs are accounted for 2s contract costs and are
transferred to profit or loss account based on the systematic pattern of revenue. The Company
capitalizes such costs if revenue relating 10 such contract has not been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash aad cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bormowings under
mark-up arrangements, used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost

Forvign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in PKR (functional and presentation currency ) af
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monctary assets and liabilitics in foreign
currencies are translated into PKR at the rates of exchange approximating those prevalent at the
date of statement of financial position. Foreign exchange pains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such tramsactions and from the translations of monctary asscts and liabilitics
denomanated in foreipn currencies are recognised in the profit or loss

Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from continuing principal revenue produsing activities of
the Company a5 well a3 other income and expenses related to operating activities. Dperating
profit excludes finance income and finance costs and income tates

Finance income and Maance cost

Finance income includes interest income on funds invested Markup / interest income s
recogrused as it accrues in the statement of profit o loss, using the effective inferest rate method.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on bomowings and bank charges. Finance EAPCRLET are
revognised using the effective interest rate method. Borrowing costs incurred for the construction
of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended wse or sale are complete. Borrowing costs that are not directly
attnibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in
statement of profit or loss.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. Management momitors the operating results of its business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonably basis, Unallocated items
comprise mainly investment property, Investments and other expenscs

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted camings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ondinary shares.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is of contains a lease at inception of the contract. This
assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on a specified asset,
whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset,
and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

The Company recognizes a right-ofuse (ROU) asset and 3 lease liability at the lease
commencement date, except for shon term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value
iterns, which are expensed in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not pasd
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uscs the incremental borrowing rate (1BR) applicable
in the market for such leases. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a simular security, the funds necessary to pbtain an sssst
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The [BR therefore
reflects what the Company *would have 10 pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need 1o be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Company estimates the [HR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method and remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment 1o the related ROU assct) when there ts
a change in future lcase payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rafe or in case
of reassessment of options.

At inception, the ROU asset comprives the initial lease liability, initial direct costs and the
obligations to refurbish the assct, less any incentives granted by the lessors. The ROU assct 1s
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The ROU
asset is subject to testing for impairment if there is an indicator for impairment, as for owned

assels ?2
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CHANGE 1% SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

Following new standards, amendments or interpretations became effective from 01 July 2022, but
they do not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements:

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fullilling a Contract [Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 clarifies that the ‘cost of fulfillng a
contract’ for the purposes of the onerous contract assessment comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract, including both the incremental costs and an allocation of other direct
costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is requared to apply the amendments 1o contracts for which
11 has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatemen! of comparative
information is not required. instead the amendments require an entity to recognire the
cumulative ¢fTect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained carnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
applicaton.

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for anpual
reporting periods beginning on or after | Jasuary 2022

=« IFRS 9 = The amendment clanifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the entity or the lender on the other’s behall, when it applies the *10 per cent” test in
paragraph B3 3.6 of [FRS 9 in assewing whether 10 derecognize a financial liability.

= IFRS 16— The amendrment partially amends [llustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS
16 by excluding the illustration of resmbursement of leaschold improvements by the
lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might
arise in lease incentives.

= IAS 41 - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of [AS 41 for entitics
10 exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a
present value technique. This amendment cnables the fair value measurement of
biological assets on a post-tax basis

Property, Plant and Equipment: Procoeds before Intended Use (Amendments to [AS 16)
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 clarifies that sales procesds
and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management e g when testing efe, are pecognized in profit or loss m accordance with applicable
standands. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements
of IAS 2. The amendment also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds
from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of
property, plant and equipment that are brought 1o the location and condition necessary for them
1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or afler the beginning of
the carlicst period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative elfect of nitially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained camings (o other component
of equity, as appropriate) af the beginning of that earliest period presented
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PROXY FORM
[Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017]
MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi

¥
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary

Murree Brewery Company Limited

3-National Park Koad, Rawalpindi.

I/ We so of d'o or wio o

being a member of Muarree Brewery Company Limlied and holder of ordinary shares as per

registered Folio / CDC Particapant [D 0, and CDC Sub Account # / CDC lavestor Account [D #
hereby appoint Mr. M. soor d'oor wio

CNICe to having registered Folio / CDC Participant ID 8.

id CDC Sub Account & / CDC  lavestor Accoumt [D &
Bi my'our proxy to attend and vole on my'our bebalfl at the Anmum) General
Meeting of the Company to be held at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, Octeber 20, 2023 at Registered Office, 3-National Park
Road, Rawalpiadi or at any adjournment there of.

Affix Be SO~
Revenue Stamp Signature of Member
(Signature should agree with the specimen
registered with the Company)
Dated thes day of October, 2021
Nigneves;
I}  Segnature 2} Signature ;
e ' Harme
Adidrewn Addres
CRIC or Passport # CMIC or Passpont @
Lmportant notes:

1. Mo person shall a1 29 proxy unless be himself i member of the Comparry, except that & corporate entity may appoint a person
who is not & member. Noo-natural members must furnish board resobution / power of sforney with specimen vignatarer of
promy along with the proay form

L Anested copies of the CNIC of the Passport of the member and the proay shall be furnivhed with the prowy form. The proxy
shall produce enginsl CNIC of original pasiport of the fime of e meetiag

A. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company, Morres Brewery Company Limited , J-Mationsl Park Rosd,
Rawalpind not less than forty-eight (45) houns (eachsbng non-working days) before the time for hokling the meeting

4. CDC Shareholders and their provies are each requested to stach sn atested photocopy of thesr Computerized National Identity
Card (CNIC) or Passport with the proay form before submimion to the Company (Original CNIC / Passport it required to be
priduced &i the Lime of the meeting)

& In cass of corpurate entity, the Board of Directon® resalution | power of aforney with spevimen signature of the person
nofmunated o represend and voir on behalf of the corporate eniiry shall be sabmitied (unless it has been provided earlier) along
with preay form io the Company.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
J-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.
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The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.
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Murree Brewery Company Limited

DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

Bank Account Detall for Payment of Cash Dividend
r 2

Dear Sharebolder,

This is to inform you that in accondance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable ia cash
shall caly be paid through elecinmnic mode directly into the bank account devignated by the entitled sharcholder. Please
note that giving bank mandate for dividend payments bs mandstory and in onder to comply with this regulatory
requirement and to avail the facility of direct crodit of dividend amount in your bank account, you are requested 1o
piease provide the following information:

Details of Sharcholder

Marme of vhareholder

Father's MNams

CIN scoount Mo / Fobo No

| CRIC T Passpon Mo

Cell pumber & Lmulhmﬂ_mr

Ermil address (Mandatory )

Dietails of Bank Account

Title of Hank Accouwnt

hmmlﬂ*ﬁmﬁﬂfllﬂﬁjlllllllIIII]J*tllllllerdlmi]

(Kindly provide your accurate [BAN pumber after consilting with your respective bank
branch snce i case of any etror or omission in given TBAN, the Company will pot be
beld respunnible in aay manner for any less or delay in your cash dividend payment)

Bank's Name

Branch MName

Hranch Address

[t is wtated that the above-mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, |/ we will immadiately
| intimate Participant ie. Murree Brewery Company Limited or its Share Regivirar e CDC Share Registrar Services
| Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S M.C.H.8, Main Shahm-¢-Faisal, Kasrachi 74400, Pakistan, accordinghy

Signature of Sharcholder

You are requested to kindly send s this letier immedistely duly filled in and signed by you slong with legible
photocopy of your valid CNIC / passport a7 our address, Murree Brewery Company Limited, 3-National Park Road,
Rawalpueti, Pakistan

Regands,
Company Secretary

Murree Brewery Company Limited
I-Matronal Park Road, Rawalpindi, Pakistan,
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